Lower bills. Livable planet.

June 13, 2011

Mr. Honesto Gatchalian

Energy Division

California Public Utilities Commission
505 Van Ness Avenue

San Francisco, CA 94102

Re: TURN Comments on Draft Resolution E-4405

Dear Mr. Gatchalian,

The Utility Reform Network (TURN) submits the following comments on Draft
Resolution E-4405 (“Draft Resolution”) issued on May 18, 2011. TURN supports
the Draft Resolution and urges the Commission to approve it at the next business
meeting.

As a member of PG&E'’s Procurement Review Group (PRG) since its inception in
2002, TURN has devoted substantial time and resources to monitoring the
utility’s renewable procurement activities. TURN has been particularly
concerned by the willingness of PG&E to execute certain high-priced contracts
for renewable power and to seek their approval in the face of cheaper
alternatives. TURN has urged PG&E not to execute or file a variety of contracts
over the years on this basis.

TURN is gratified that the Commission has recently applied greater scrutiny to
renewable power proposals. For example, the Commission rejected PG&E'’s
application seeking to acquire, own and operate the Manzana wind project in the
face of serious opposition by TURN and DRA. The Commission explained that
the rejection was justified because “the proposed cost of the Manzana Wind
Project is significantly higher than the cost of other resources PG&E can procure
to meet its Renewables Portfolio Standard (RPS) program goal.”?

The Draft Resolution similarly proposes to reject AL 3759-E “without prejudice”

* Decision 11-03-036, page 2.
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on the basis that “the North Star Solar contract price is unreasonably high
compared to other comparable renewable RPS-eligible projects that have been
recently offered to PG&E.” (page 5) The Resolution notes that the price is far in
excess of options currently being offered to PG&E in recent solicitations. Having
reviewed all this pricing data, TURN agrees with this assessment.

The Northstar project provided a bid in response to PG&E’s 2009 RPS
solicitation. Since that time, market prices for photovoltaic projects have
declined substantially due to a combination of plummeting panel prices, cheaper
financing, more generous tax benefits and the reduction in costs of other system
components. As a result, typical bids provided in response to recent solicitations
are priced far lower than those received for similar projects in 2009.2

Developers of solar projects wait until the last possible moment to make binding
financial commitments for equipment, construction and financing. At the very
least, developers do not make such commitments until a valid PPA has been
executed by a creditworthy counterparty and approved by any relevant
regulatory agency. If the Commission were to approve the contract as
submitted, North Star would be able to take advantage of the industry-wide cost
declines but none of these savings would be passed onto PG&E ratepayers. As a
result, the savings would be used only to substantially increase investor returns.

TURN has watched a variety of developers with executed PPAs come back for
price increases when fundamental cost drivers make a project uneconomic to
continue. In such cases, the IOUs have been willing to accommodate reasonable
and justifiable increases on a case-by-case basis. Developers argue that they
cannot be held to a price submitted years ago when the market has changed and
costs are higher. TURN has been willing to endorse these amendments when
developers open their books and demonstrate the reasonableness of costs and
investor returns. The Commission has approved many such modifications over
the years.

Now the Commission faces the opposite scenario. TURN urges that the principle
of symmetry be applied. If it is fair to allow developers to seek price increases
when market conditions change, it is also fair to reject a PPA when a developer
locks in pricing at the peak of the market and changed conditions reveal that the
price is artificially high and unreasonable. This does not mean that Commission-
approved PPAs should be reopened after-the-fact, but rather that this type of
analysis should apply to any PPA seeking Commission approval.

2 Project financing was problematic in 2009 after the credit meltdown in 4Q2008 and solar panel
prices have declined significantly in 2010.
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Undoubtedly, PG&E and the developer will assert that executed contracts are
sacred and that the Commission cannot force a developer to accept a lower price
just because markets have changed. This argument must be rejected in favor of
the application of symmetric principles. Moreover, PG&E’s concerns should be
heavily discounted because the utility is contractually bound to support
Commission approval of any executed PPA and cannot publicly admit that this
(or any proposed) deal is unreasonable.

TURN supports the use of the Westlands Water District land for new solar
project development. This site includes previously disturbed agricultural lands
that are well-suited for large-scale solar installations. Projects located on this site
are unlikely to face any local opposition or massive land mitigation
requirements. TURN hopes that the North Star projects can agree to amend their
contracts and offer competitive pricing based on current market conditions.
TURN could support approval of a revised PPA under such circumstances.

The Commission should therefore approve the draft resolution and reject the
Advice Letter without prejudice. Such an action will send an important message
about the need to align PPA pricing with actual market costs, especially in the
situation where significant declines in market prices cause an unapproved PPA
to become uncompetitive and exorbitant.

Sincerely,

/S/

Matthew Freedman

Staff Attorney

The Utility Reform Network
115 Sansome Street, Suite 900
San Francisco, CA 94104
matthew@turn.org
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Larry Wong, certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of
California that the following is true and correct:

On June 13, 2011, | served the attached:

TURN Comments on Draft Resolution E-4405

on all eligible parties on the attached list by sending said document by electronic mail to
each of the parties via electronic mail, as reflected on the attached Service List.

Executed this June 13, 2011, at San Francisco, California.

1S/
Larry Wong
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